
MINUTES 
CITY OF NORCO 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS-2820 CLARK AVENUE 
JUNE 9, 2008 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:      6:30 PM 

  
2. ROLL CALL Commissioners Bash, Boyle, Holder, 

Wagner, Hallam, Director Petree, 
Superintendent Anglin, Supervisors 
Kennedy, Ridge - Executive Secretary 
Jo Ann Dickson, Lacie Withers – 
Withers and Sandgren LTD – Dave 
Gilbertson, City Engineer 

 
  Absent:   Commissioner Wagner 
 
3.        PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Commissioner Hallam 
 
4.       PRESENTATION/S 

A. None 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
6.       ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Community Center Parking Renovation  
Director Petree explained to the Commission that June of 2001, City Council approved 
the acquisition of .58 acres located on Hamner Avenue just east of Riley Gym.  The 
acquisition was based on recommendations from the Parks and Recreation 
Commission’s recommendation in May 2001, for expansion of Riley Gym/Norco 
Community Center Parking.  The City acquired the balance of .8 acres along Hamner 
Avenue north of Taft by the County of Riverside through forfeiture for recovery of a tax 
lien. 
 
The Director further informed the Commission that the purchase of the property was 
based on staff and Commission’s belief that acquiring the property would be an asset to 
the overall development of the park and improve the parking during weekend events 
and during basketball season.  The property when developed would add to the green 
space in the City and provide for an improved appearance entering into the City.   
 
Staff and Commission further felt that this parcel was a nuisance as debris and 
unwanted items are often dumped at this site.  Development of the site when funding 
would be available would also deter individuals from using the property for storage of 
vehicle and the sale of vehicles.   
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
June 9, 2008 
 

   

Director Petree told the Commission that funding for development of the parking lot 
expansion has been an issue for years with Impact Funds prioritized elsewhere. 
Discussion developed with Cal Trans regarding potential relocation of their current Park 
and Ride lot on Old Hamner Road. Staff considers the Park and Ride parcel to have a 
higher and better retail use for a commercial development.  With staff discussions for 
future development of the Cal Trans property staff in turn began discussion to look at 
linking the development of the future parking expansion at Community Center to 
relocating the Cal Trans Park and Ride lot.   
 
Director Petree advised the Commission that the joint land use works well for both Cal 
Trans and the City as competitive usage is at different intervals not impacting either 
use.  In addition, the project is eligible for Redevelopment funding as it is in the 
redevelopment area and would free up valuable property by Cal Trans to Retail or 
Commercial use.   
 
The Director further advised the Commission that the project would require an 
agreement with Cal Trans which they have verbally agreed to for relocation and would 
require maintenance of the parking lot to be borne by Cal Trans and the landscape and 
hardscape maintenance be the responsibility of the City. The Community Center 
parking area provides approximately 22 more parking spaces than the existing Park and 
Ride, and 126 more spaces to Riley Gym/Community Center. 
 
Director Petree told the Commission that the project includes two equestrian trail 
alternatives for future phases in providing connection to the east side of Hamner. He 
noted the two alternatives being: 
 

 Alternative #1 provides trail improvement from Norconian Drive east on Norco Drive 
to Hamner and then north on Hamner to Community Center with a developed trail 
along the eastern perimeter of the park to an equestrian stop light crossing at 
Alhambra providing access east to Taft Street.  In review by Committee and staff, 
this alternative has raised concern for equestrian crossing of Hamner and Norco 
Drive due to the volume of traffic at the intersection. 

 
 Alternative #2 provides trail development from Norconian Drive north connecting at 

Cedar to Community Center Park with a developed trail along the south perimeter of 
the park connecting to the east side of the park on Hamner a with developed trail 
along the eastern perimeter of the park to an equestrian stop light crossing at 
Alhambra providing access east to Taft Street. In review by Committee and staff, 
this alternative would impose removal of landscaping by the City on the east side of 
Cedar where the resident has built into the City right-of-way. 

 
The Director noted that the two alternatives are for consideration of the second phase of 
the project scope and will require Streets and Trails Commission input as well. The 
Director then asked the Commission for their recommendation. 
 
Dave Gilbertson, City Engineer and Lacey Withers, the design Architect were 
introduced by Director Petree. 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
June 9, 2008 
 

   

Dave Gilbertson spoke to the Commission regarding the project, noting the issues with 
the parking lot expansion. He noted there are actually two parking lots, separated by the 
Alhambra Street signal light. Mr. Gilbertson discussed different aspects of the 
expansion project along with the phases of the proposed project. Dave Gilbertson noted 
he prefers Alternative #2. Discussion followed.  
 
Commissioner Bash asked if Alhambra Street would be extended. The City Engineer 
noted yes, that was correct. Commissioner Bash noted that the traffic going south on 
Hamner comes up over the hill at a high rate of speed from the bridge and he is 
concerned anytime the City opens a street with the generated flow of traffic.  
 
Discussion followed. Commissioner Hallam asked if flashing street lights could be 
incorporated into this project as the City of Corona does. Lacey Withers then spoke to 
the Commission and noted that the important aspect is to beautify the parking 
expansion to curtail the view of cars, but not to hinder the security of the parking lots. 
She noted the type of trees, bushes and plant material that will be used for the 
beautification of the property. Lacey also noted to Commission and the public that there 
will be a “welcome to Norco” sign as driving south on Hamner Avenue. This lot was 
designed so the big rigs cannot enter the parking lot.  
 
Chair Bash opened the discussion for the public regarding this project. 
 
Rosa Brown -      Acacia Avenue asked if Hamner is going to be widened, and if this 
property will be destroyed doing this. She asked if horsetrails are going to be installed 
on her side of Hamner since they are not allowed animals in her development. Director 
Petree addressed her concerns and noted that the City is just looking for a safe 
passage for horse back riding. He noted that Alhambra Street would be a safe passage 
not only for the horses, but the traffic flow. 
 
Ken Sellers – stated that he is welcoming any improvements to beautiful aesthetics. He 
only opposes the closing of Taft Street. He feels there needs to be a second access 
road to the development, if not only for the traffic, but for emergency vehicles. He noted 
it only saves approximately six parking spaces by eliminating Taft. He also suggested 
making the crossing for horses an underground/under crossing trail when Hamner and 
the bridge are widened.  
 
Chair Bash asked if Taft could be kept open. Dave Gilbertson noted that it is too close  
a distance from Taft to Alhambra Street. He has an issue with leaving it open due to 
traffic flow, but noted it could be looked in to and be studied.  
 
Mr. Sellers had a response that Taft could be made into a one-way only right turn only 
street. He feels a second thoroughfare is needed in the neighborhood for the residents 
and emergency vehicles. 
 
Frank Maney – 3996 Hamner. Stated that he and his wife support the improvements. 
He noted that they have been waiting for the improvements happening in the area. He 
then asked if there is going to be sidewalks were going in to Hamner Avenue when it is 
widened. The Director noted he is not aware of any sidewalks. Dave Gilbertson noted 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
June 9, 2008 
 

   

that the sidewalk would end at the Alhambra Street area. No sidewalks north of 
Alhambra Street. Discussions followed. Mr. Maney asked about the project schedule of 
development. The Director noted he could see the project starting by the end of the 
year.  
 
Sandy Reiley 4103 Cedar Ave– She agrees with the flashing lights and the underground 
tunnel for horses. She is afraid of the traffic flow that will be driving down Alhambra 
Street and the speed people will be driving. Ms. Reiley also noted that she is afraid that 
that there will be more vehicles/motor homes and misc. items that will still be in the 
parking area continually. The Director stated he feels there would be more safety in this 
parking area, as the Highway Patrol and Sheriff Department would be patrolling the 
area since it is a City/CalTrans parking lot. Discussion followed. 
 
Kathy Downing 4303 Acacia – noted she is very happy about this project.  
 
Denise Abercrombie 4016 Acacia – She noted there is a lot of speeding on Alhambra 
Street. She feels that opening Alhambra is a bad idea. There will be a straight shot 
down the street and the speeding will increase, and someone will get hurt or worse. She 
is concerned that there will be more traffic taking short cuts down Alhambra Street. Ms. 
Abercrombie asked what the parking will be used for. The Director noted the events, 
etc. that take place and where parking is needed and the parking lot for Cal Trans and 
commute drivers. 
 
Chair Bash asked the Commission for comments. Commissioner Boyle noted that 
additional parking is needed for the Community Center area. He also stated that he 
feels the aesthetics is positive. He did note that he has some concerns for security 
issues, and asked if the parking lot could be closed from midnight to 6 a.m. for no 
parking. Chair Bash asked about the maintenance costs for the parking lot. The Director 
noted that he felt it would be approximately $25,000 per year for the City’s share, noting 
that Cal Trans will be sharing the costs. 
 
Chair Bash asked if the horsetrail should be on the West side of Hamner on Acacia 
rather the east side of Hamner.  Commissioner Holder asked if at Alhambra and Cedar 
if there could be a flashing light cross walk light.  
 
M/S Hallam/Holder to approve Alternate Trail #2.  
 
AYES: 4-0 Bash, Boyle, Hallam, Holder 
ABSENT:  Wagner 
 
M/S Hallam/Boyle - To approve the Community Center Parking lot Expansion and 
Development as designed.  
 
Discussion followed. Chair Bash has a concern the opening of Alhambra Street.  Sandy 
Reiley asked about lighting of the area. The Director noted that there will be lighting, 
more of the type of lighting on Sixth Street. She also asked if there could be security 
cameras and hopes they consider them due to the graffiti that is occurring 
 
AYES:  Bash, Boyle, Hallam, Holder 
ABSENT:  Wagner 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Page 5 
June 9, 2008 
 

   

 
 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
7. A.       None 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
8.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 12, 2008 
 
9.       SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT – ITEMS 9.1. – 9.20 
  
          COMMISSION INFORMATION 

 
10.     CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL ITEMS 

A. Approval of Agreement with Valley Crest Landscape Maintenance in 
the Amount of $520,548 for Landscape Maintenance Services in the 
City of Norco 

   AYES:  Hall, Clark, Azevedo, Hanna, Miller 
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:  

 
          END OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
M/S Boyle, Bash  to approve the Consent Calendar 
AYES: Bash, Boyle Hallam, Holder 
ABSENT: Wagner 
 
11.     COMMISSION ONGOING BUSINESS 

A. Ingalls Park 
B. Animal Shelter Expansion  
C. Pikes Peak Park – Update on Horseshoe Pits - Superintendent Wyrick 
D. 122  Acre Development 
E. Walking Horse Estates / SunCal / Norco Ridge Ranch-Park Improvements 
F. Cultural and Fine Arts Programming 
G. Teen Programming and Teen Center 
H. U.N.L.O.A.D. Program – Gone dark until September 
I. Norco Hills Conservancy 
 

12. DISCUSSION OF REMOVED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS. 
 
13. OTHER MATTERS 

A. Public Preview of Community Center Parking Lot Expansion 
Director   Petree discussed the pending project and reviewed the three potential site 
plans that could happen at the Silverlakes property.  The Director noted various aspects 
of each plan with Commission holding discussion. Chair Bash noted the only difference 
between this plan and the plan the Commission came up with seven years ago is 
someone else is going to pay for it. Once the EIR is done, the Director noted that 
Belstarr will be back to the City Council with concepts and discussions. He stated that 
he wanted Commission updated on the status. Commissioner Hallam asked if the 
Judge has seen any of these plans or if the City has had any comments from the Judge 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Page 6 
June 9, 2008 
 

   

on this matter. The Director noted as far as he knows, no contact with the judge has 
taken place. Commissioner Boyle asked if there will be any fees to the City for the use 
of the property. The Director noted no cost to the City except for the cost of lights if we 
should incur any usage. 
 
Commissioner Holder noted the volunteer dinner was very good and thanked everyone. 
The Director noted that the City has a new contractor for Landscape – Valley Crest 
Landscape and stated that he feels that this contractor will be an asset to the 
community and do a great job. Valley Crest is one of the top landscape maintenance 
contractors in the United States. 
 
Chair Bash asked how the snack bars at Wayne Makin are doing. Commissioner Boyle 
noted that a resident he knows stated how they are enjoying the new snack bars. The 
Director informed the Commission that the NGSL had a tournament over Memorial 
weekend and to his knowledge netted approximately $7,000. 
 
Commissioner Holder also noted that everyone she has spoken to likes the new snack 
bars. Chair Bash asked if the Commissioners like the new trail fence. Commissioner 
Bash doesn’t like the plastic fencing. Discussion followed. 
 
           ADJOURNMENT    
 
M/S Hallam/Boyle to adjourn at 8:25 p.m. to the July 14, 2008 PRC meeting. 
 
AYES: Bash, Boyle, Hallam, Holder  
ABSENT: Wagner 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jo Ann Dickson, Executive Secretary 

 
69374 


